

Proposal 2 It is proposed to change the SOA Articles and Bye-laws in line with the changes in membership structure

SOA Articles: Section 8 Proposed

8. MEMBERSHIP

8.1 The subscribers to the Memorandum of Association and such bodies or individuals as are admitted to membership in accordance with the Articles shall be members of the Company.

8.2 Membership shall be open to Individuals, Clubs, or Groups actively interested in promoting and developing the sport, subject to the following conditions in this Article.

8.3 Categories of Membership

There shall be the following categories of membership:-

8.3.1 Senior Members: Individual Senior membership shall be available to persons who are aged 21 or older on 31 December of the membership year, who have complied with the Membership Bye-law, and have paid the appropriate membership fee;

8.3.2 Junior Members: Individual Junior membership shall be available to persons who are aged 20 or younger on 31 December of the membership year, who have complied with the Membership Bye-law, and have paid the appropriate membership fee;

8.3.3 Honorary Members: Honorary membership: shall be open to such individuals who have given outstanding service or shown outstanding achievement in the Sport as shall have honorary membership conferred on them by a General Meeting of the Company on the recommendation of the Board.

8.3.4 Patrons: It shall be open to the Board to appoint Patrons to the Company on such terms as it may determine.

8.3.5 Other Categories of Membership: Other categories of membership may be defined in the Membership Bye-law.

8.4 Membership Bye-laws

The Company may adopt such Membership Bye-laws as it may deem to be necessary and expedient for the purposes of

- (i) prescribing other categories of membership and the voting rights of such other categories of members;
- (ii) prescribing conditions of membership, together with the admission and classification of all or any of the classes of membership; and
- (iii) the membership fees payable

Notwithstanding Article 13.2 which generally authorises the Board to adopt Bye-laws, Membership Bye-laws shall only be adopted by a General Meeting of the Company, or by the Board with the prior approval of a General Meeting of the Company.

8.5 Admission or Affiliation to the Company

Any individual, desirous of joining the Company will be required to submit such information as may from time to time be required by the Board and will be required to deliver that together with such supporting documentation as may be required by the Board along with the appropriate annual membership fees. The Board shall consider the application and may at their discretion hear verbal submissions from any applicant. The admission or affiliation of individuals shall be determined promptly by the Board who have the power to grant or refuse admission to membership on such terms as the Board may from time to time determine. For the avoidance of doubt, admission will not be granted until after receipt by the Company of the appropriate annual membership fees. Membership is open to all and no applications will be refused on other than reasonable grounds. There will be no discrimination either in membership or in the provision of facilities or services on grounds of race, occupation, sex (save in the organisation of classes for competition) or religious, political or other opinion.

8.6 Unless with the prior written approval of the Board, it shall be a precondition of membership that each member shall observe the Company's child protection policies and procedures.

8.7 Each member shall be bound by and shall abide by these Articles, and any Rules, Bye-laws or policies made under the powers given in the Articles as well as any

codes of conduct, disciplinary procedures and rules and anti-doping programmes which may be adopted from time to time by the Board. Any failure by any such member so to act will render such person liable to be treated as having been guilty of misconduct in terms of Article 19 and they may therefore be subject to discipline in terms of Article 20.

8.8 Voting Rights

For the avoidance of doubt Honorary members and Junior members who are aged 15 or younger shall have no voting rights. Individual members shall each have one vote. Voting rights for other categories of members shall be as determined by the Membership Bye-laws. No member shall vote at any General Meeting in the Company unless all monies payable by the member have been settled. Proxy voting shall be allowed.

8.9 Termination of Membership

A member shall cease to be a member of the Company if their resignation from the Company is intimated in writing or there is a failure to pay the subscription and fees by the due date. The rights and privileges of membership are not transferable and shall cease on any member ceasing to be a member for whatever reason.

The Board may by a resolution passed by a two thirds majority present and voting at a Board meeting terminate the membership of the Company of any individual with effect from the date determined in such resolution after observing the rules of natural justice and in accordance with Articles 19 and 20 herein. After termination of membership, however caused, the rights of such a member shall cease but without prejudice to any outstanding claims by the Company against such a member or by such a member against the Company.

SOA Articles: Section 8 Existing

8. MEMBERSHIP

8.1 The subscribers to the Memorandum of Association and such bodies or individuals as are admitted to membership in accordance with the Articles shall be members of the Company.

8.2 Membership shall be open to Individuals, Families, Clubs, or Groups actively interested in promoting and developing the sport, subject to the following conditions in this Article.

8.3 Categories of Membership

There shall be the following categories of membership;-

8.3.1 Individual Members: Individual membership shall be available to persons who have attained their sixteenth birthday, who have complied with the Membership Bye-law, and have paid the appropriate membership fee;

8.3.2 Youth Members: Youth membership shall be available to persons under the age of sixteen, who have complied with the Membership Bye-law, and have paid the appropriate membership fee;

8.3.3 Family Members: Family membership shall be available to families who have complied with the Membership Bye-law and have paid the appropriate membership fee;

8.3.4 Honorary Members: Honorary membership: shall be open to such individuals who have given outstanding service or shown outstanding achievement in the Sport as shall have honorary membership conferred on them by a General Meeting of the Company on the recommendation of the Board.

8.3.5 Patrons: It shall be open to the Board to appoint Patrons to the Company on such terms as it may determine.

8.3.6 Other Categories of Membership: Other categories of membership may be defined in the Membership Bye-law.

8.4 Membership Bye-laws

The Company may adopt such Membership Bye-laws as it may deem to be necessary and expedient for the purposes of

- (i) prescribing other categories of membership and the voting rights of such other categories of members;
- (ii) prescribing conditions of membership, together with the admission and classification of all or any of the classes of membership; and

(iii) the membership fees payable

Notwithstanding Article 13.2 which generally authorises the Board to adopt Bye-laws, Membership Bye-laws shall only be adopted by a General Meeting of the Company, or by the Board with the prior approval of a General Meeting of the Company.

8.5 Admission or Affiliation to the Company

Any individual or family, desirous of joining the Company will be required to submit such information as may from time to time be required by the Board and will be required to deliver that together with such supporting documentation as may be required by the Board along with the appropriate annual membership fees. The Board shall consider the application and may at their discretion hear verbal submissions from any applicant. The admission or affiliation of individuals and families shall be determined promptly by the Board who have the power to grant or refuse admission to membership on such terms as the Board may from time to time determine. For the avoidance of doubt, admission will not be granted until after receipt by the Company of the appropriate annual membership fees. Membership is open to all and no applications will be refused on other than reasonable grounds. There will be no discrimination either in membership or in the provision of facilities or services on grounds of race, occupation, sex (save in the organisation of classes for competition) or religious, political or other opinion.

8.6 Unless with the prior written approval of the Board, it shall be a precondition of membership that each member shall observe the Company's child protection policies and procedures.

8.7 Each member shall be bound by and shall abide by these Articles, and any Rules, Bye-laws or policies made under the powers given in the Articles as well as any codes of conduct, disciplinary procedures and rules and anti-doping programmes which may be adopted from time to time by the Board. Any failure by any such member so to act will render such person liable to be treated as having been guilty of misconduct in terms of Article 19 and they may therefore be subject to discipline in terms of Article 20.

8.8 Voting Rights

For the avoidance of doubt Honorary members and Youth members shall have no voting rights. Individual members shall each have one vote. Families shall have one vote for each member of the family over the age of sixteen and present at any

Meeting. Voting rights for other categories of members shall be as determined by the Membership Bye-laws. No member shall vote at any General Meeting in the Company unless all monies payable by the member have been settled. No proxy vote shall be allowed.

8.9 Termination of Membership

A member shall cease to be a member of the Company if their resignation from the Company is intimated in writing or there is a failure to pay the subscription and fees by the due date. The rights and privileges of membership are not transferable and shall cease on any member ceasing to be a member for whatever reason.

The Board may by a resolution passed by a two thirds majority present and voting at a Board meeting terminate the membership of the Company of any individual or family member with effect from the date determined in such resolution after observing the rules of natural justice and in accordance with Articles 19 and 20 herein. After termination of membership, however caused, the rights of such a member shall cease but without prejudice to any outstanding claims by the Company against such a member or by such a member against the Company.

SOA Articles: Other amendments proposed

Article 11.5. Amended from “Twenty Individual or Family Members shall be a quorum for a General Meeting” to “Twenty Individual Members shall be a quorum for a General Meeting”.

SOA Bye Laws: Article 8.4 states:

“Membership Bye-laws shall only be adopted by a General Meeting of the Company, or by the Board with the prior approval of a General Meeting of the Company.”

SOA Bye-laws: Section 8 Proposed

8. Membership, Subscriptions and Voting Rights

Membership shall be open to individuals, clubs or groups actively interested in promoting and developing orienteering as a sport subject to the conditions in the Memorandum and Articles and this Bye-Law.

General Conditions

Members shall:

- comply with the Memorandum and Articles, the Bye-Laws, the Rules and policies of the Scottish Orienteering Association (SOA), and
- shall pay the annual membership fee prescribed by the (SOA)

Categories of Membership

The categories of membership are

(i) as defined in the Memorandum and Articles

- Individual Senior Members,
- Individual Junior Members
- Honorary Members,
- Patrons and

(ii) as specified by this Bye-Law

- Groups, and
- Clubs

Specific Conditions

Individual Senior Membership is available to persons who are aged 21 or older on 31 December of the membership year, are a member of a Club affiliated to the SOA, and are a member of the British Orienteering Federation

Individual Junior Membership is available to persons who are aged 20 or younger on 31 December of the membership year, are a member of a Club affiliated to the SOA, and are a member of the British Orienteering Federation

Honorary Membership may be accorded to persons who have given outstanding achievement in the Sport as shall have Honorary Membership conferred on them by a General Meeting of the SOA on the recommendation of the Board

Patrons: It shall be up to the Board to appoint Patrons to the SOA on such terms as it may determine

Group membership: Group membership is available to young people under 21 years of age who are at school or university or belong to a youth group.

Clubs who have applied to be affiliated to the SOA, and have been recognized as so affiliated by the Board

Honorary Presidents and Vice Presidents

An Honorary President and Vice-presidents of the Association may be elected at the Annual General Meeting from among the Individual and Family Members. For the avoidance of doubt,

- such Honorary Presidents and Vice-presidents do not form a new category of members
- such Honorary Presidents and Vice presidents do not have any role in governing the SOA by virtue of their office.

Subscriptions

Subscriptions are due on a calendar year basis.

The subscriptions to be paid shall be agreed at each AGM for the following calendar year (though may be modified by a subsequent General Meeting) and shall be published in the Statement of Charges.

Individual Members are classified as either Seniors or Juniors for the payment of subscriptions.

Notwithstanding any decision on subscriptions at the AGM or a subsequent General Meeting, the Board is authorised to offer discounts to classes of members on a non-discriminatory basis to encourage new membership including any discounts given to those joining part way through a calendar year.

Voting

The voting rights are

- (i) as defined in the Memorandum and Articles
 - Individual Senior Members shall each have one vote,
 - Individual Junior Members 16 years of age or older shall each have one vote,
 - Honorary members shall have no voting rights, and
- (ii) as specified in this Bye-law
 - Groups shall have no voting rights and,
 - Clubs shall have no voting rights.

SOA Bye-laws: Section 8 Existing

8. Membership, Subscriptions and Voting Rights

Membership shall be open to individuals, families, groups or clubs actively interested in promoting and developing orienteering as a sport subject to the conditions in the Memorandum and Articles and this Bye-Law.

General Conditions

Members shall:

- comply with the Memorandum and Articles, the Bye-Laws, the Rules and policies of the Scottish Orienteering Association (SOA), and
- shall pay the annual membership fee prescribed by the (SOA)

Categories of Membership

The categories of membership are

(i) as defined in the Memorandum and Articles

- Individual Members,
- Youth Members
- Family Members,
- Honorary Members,
- Patrons and

(ii) as specified by this Bye-Law

- Groups, and
- Clubs

Specific Conditions

Individual Membership is available to persons who have attained their sixteenth birthday, are a member of a Club affiliated to the SOA, and are a member of the British Orienteering Federation

Youth Membership is available to persons under the age of sixteen, are a member of a Club affiliated to the SOA, and are a member of the British Orienteering Federation

Family Membership is available to members of a family all residing at the same address, and comprising up to two adults living together with any children up to the age of 25 for whom either of the first two adults are parents or guardians, who are a member of a Club affiliated to the SOA, and are a member of the British Orienteering Federation

Honorary Membership may be accorded to persons who have given outstanding achievement in the Sport as shall have Honorary Membership conferred on them by a General Meeting of the SOA on the recommendation of the Board

Patrons: It shall be up to the Board to appoint Patrons to the SOA on such terms as it may determine

Group membership: Group membership is available to young people under 21 years of age who are at school or university or belong to a youth group.

Clubs who have applied to be affiliated to the SOA, and have been recognized as so affiliated by the Board

Honorary Presidents and Vice Presidents

An Honorary President and Vice-presidents of the Association may be elected at the Annual General Meeting from among the Individual and Family Members. For the avoidance of doubt,

- such Honorary Presidents and Vice-presidents do not form a new category of members
- such Honorary Presidents and Vice presidents do not have any role in governing the SOA by virtue of their office.

Subscriptions

Subscriptions are due on a calendar year basis.

The subscriptions to be paid shall be agreed at each AGM for the following calendar year (though may be modified by a subsequent General Meeting) and shall be published in the Statement of Charges.

Individual Members and Youth Members are classified as either Seniors or Juniors for the payment of subscriptions.

Juniors for the purpose of membership subscription (as defined in bye-law 6), or bona-fide students in a full time course of further education are classified as Juniors for the payment of subscriptions. Other persons are classified as Seniors.

Notwithstanding any decision on subscriptions at the AGM or a subsequent General Meeting, the Board is authorised to offer discounts to classes of members on a non-discriminatory basis to encourage new membership including any discounts given to those joining part way through a calendar year.

Voting

The voting rights are

- (i) as defined in the Memorandum and Articles
 - Individual Members shall each have one vote,
 - Youth members shall have no voting rights,
 - Families shall have one vote for each member of the family over the age of sixteen and present at any Meeting,
 - Honorary members shall have no voting rights, and
- (ii) as specified in this Bye-law
 - Groups are allowed up to two votes per member of the group present at any Meeting who are over the age of sixteen years, and
 - Club shall have no voting rights.

No proxy votes are allowed.